
Willamette Intake Facilities 
Commission 

Board Meeting  

MEETING PACKET 

 

January 23, 2023 





Page 1 of 1 

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission
Board Meeting Agenda 

Monday, January 23, 2023 | 6:00 – 7:30 PM 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

If you wish to attend via conference call and need dial-in information, please contact annette.rehms@tvwd.org or call 
971-222-5957 by 4:00 p.m. on January 23, 2023.

If you wish to address the WIF Board, please request the Public Comment Form and return it 48 hours prior to the day of 
the meeting.    

The meeting is accessible to persons with disabilities and those who need qualified bilingual interpreters. A request for an 
interpreter for the hearing impaired, a bilingual interpreter or for other accommodations should be made at least 72 
hours before the meeting to the contact listed above. 

REGULAR SESSION – 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Dave Kraska
Brief presentation on current activities relative to the WIF Commission

PUBLIC COMMENT
This time is set aside for persons wishing to address the Board on items on the Consent Agenda, as well as matters not on
the agenda. Additional public comment will be invited on agenda items as they are presented. Each person is limited to
five minutes unless an extension is granted by the Board. Should three or more people testify on the same topic, each
person will be limited to three minutes.

CONSENT AGENDA
These items are considered to be routine and may be approved in one motion without separate discussion. Any Board
member may request that an item be removed by motion for discussion and separate action. Any items requested to be
removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion will be considered immediately after the Board has approved
those items which do not require discussion.

Approve the October 24, 2022, meeting minutes
Accept Financial Statements and Report  of Independent Auditor for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

BUSINESS AGENDA

Election of Officers – Dave Kraska

INFORMATION ITEMS

FY 2023-24 Annual Work Plan and Budget Preparation – Justin Carlton
Watershed Protection, Monitoring, and Outreach Plan Updates – Christina Walter
Legislative Updates – Joel Cary
The next Board meeting is scheduled on April 24, 2023, via Microsoft Teams

COMMUNICATIONS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS

None scheduled

ADJOURNMENT 



 

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 
 

 



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From:  David Kraska, P.E., General Manager 

Date:  January 23, 2023 

Subject: Willamette Intake Facilities General Manager’s Report 

This report provides an overview of some of the current Willamette Intake Facilities (WIF) work efforts under 
the direction of this Commission, beginning with a Safety Minute presentation.  

1. Curtailment Plan and Operations Plan Updates – During 2022, with the support of the WIF Operations
Committee, staff reviewed the draft Curtailment Plan and made progress on drafting the Operations
Plan. Staff anticipate completing the draft Operations Plan this fiscal year and starting the Emergency
Response Plan efforts. Per the WIF Intergovernmental Agreement, all three plans will need to be
adopted by the Board of Commissioners prior to 2026.

2. Willamette Intake Facilities Insurance Renewal – The 2023 renewal of WIF property and casualty
insurance has been completed and the new policy took effect on January 1, 2023. There were no
changes in coverage and the premium was within budget at $26,698.00.

3. Acceptance of Financial Statements and Report of Independent Auditor – One consent agenda item for
today’s meeting is to consider accepting by motion both the financial statements for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022, and the report of the independent auditor. As the Managing Agency, TVWD
prepared the WIF Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Moss
Adams LLP, the WIF Commission’s independent auditor, has completed its audit of these financial
statements. Moss Adams has provided an unmodified opinion on the WIF Commission’s financial
statements. An unmodified opinion is commonly referred to as a “clean audit”. Acceptance of the
financial statements and the report of the independent auditor by the WIF Commission Board validates
the filing of the financial statements with the Oregon Secretary of State as required by Oregon law.

4. Quarterly Financial Reports – Task 4.c. of the Annual Work Plan requires the Managing Agency to
prepare quarterly financial reports and provide them to the WIF Commission Board as part of the
packet. Attached to this General Manager’s report is the quarterly financial statement for the period
ending December 31, 2022.

5. Update on Possible Move to Hybrid Meetings and Virtual Meetings Protocol – At the October 24, 2022
WIF Commission Board meeting, staff provided an update on the possible move to hybrid meetings.
TVWD is still in the process of acquiring the needed equipment to facilitate holding hybrid meetings in
its boardroom. Accordingly, we recommend the April 2023 meeting be held virtually. We will follow up
with the WIF Commissioners in September on whether a hybrid October 2023 WIF Commission Board
meeting can be held at the TVWD boardroom.

Regarding the WIF Commission Board meeting protocol, we would like to propose the Board adopt a
standard for virtual meetings that Board members’ cameras be on for the duration of the meeting, and
the camera for anyone addressing the Board is on for the duration of their agenda item. Microphones

1-1



Willamette Intake Facilities General Manager’s Report
January 23, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 

would continue to be off when not speaking. This proposal originated as a suggestion from Vice Chair 
Akervall, and we agree that having cameras on supports our commitments to transparency and open 
communications with each other and with the public. At this time, we would appreciate the 
Commissioners’ considerations and comments regarding this proposal. 
 
 

1-1











This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
1 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
2 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
3 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
4 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
5 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
6 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
7 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
8 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
9 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a general description of the coverage(s) 
and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer 

to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
10 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
11 of 28

5.



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
12 of 28

subject to a $5,000 minimum and $50,000 maximum)



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
13 of 28

(Reference Section VIII - Covered Property in the SDIS Property Coverage Document)

(Reference Section X - Additional Coverages in the SDIS Property Coverage 
Document)

(Reference Section XI - Additional Coverages - Business Income and Extra Expense in 
the SDIS Property Coverage Document)

(Reference Section XII - Coverage Extensions in the SDIS Property Coverage 
Document)



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
14 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
15 of 28

Higher limits may be available.



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
16 of 28

Client ultimately chooses limits insured. Higher limits may be available via separate policy. 

Social Engineering Sublimit of $250,000 is new for January 1, 2023 SDIS Renewals



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
17 of 28

Higher limits may be available.



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
18 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
19 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
20 of 28

Higher limits may be available.



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
21 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known 
to the Agency by you and contains only a general 

description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a 
policy/contract. For complete policy information, 

including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please 
refer to your policy. 

In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
22 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known 
to the Agency by you and contains only a general 

description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a 
policy/contract. For complete policy information, 

including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please 
refer to your policy. 

In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
23 of 28

and/or 

 



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known 
to the Agency by you and contains only a general 

description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a 
policy/contract. For complete policy information, 

including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please 
refer to your policy. 

In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
24 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known 
to the Agency by you and contains only a general 

description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a 
policy/contract. For complete policy information, 

including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please 
refer to your policy. 

In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
25 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known 
to the Agency by you and contains only a general 

description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a 
policy/contract. For complete policy information, 

including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please 
refer to your policy. 

In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
26 of 28



This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a general description of the coverage(s) 
and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer 

to your policy. 
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail.

BROWN & BROWN 
27 of 28





Willamette Intake Facility Commission
For the annual budget period ending June 30, 2023
For the quarter ended December 31, 2022

Unaudited

Budget Actual Variance
Annual
 Budget

Budget
 To date Actual Variance

Remaining
Budget

Revenues
197,975$      60,444$             (137,531)$        Contributions 791,900$      395,950$           81,786$               (314,164)$      710,114$      
368,328         53,346               (314,983)          Capital contributions 1,473,313     736,657              668,828               (67,829)           804,485         
566,303$      113,790$           (452,513)$        Total Revenues 2,265,213$   1,132,607$        750,614$             (381,992)$      1,514,599$   

Expenditures

197,975$      60,444$             137,531$          Materials and Services 791,900$      395,950$           81,786$               314,164$        710,114$      

355,328         53,346               301,983            Capital Outlay 1,421,313     710,657              668,828               41,829            752,485         

13,000           - 13,000 Contingency 52,000           26,000 - 26,000 52,000           

566,303$      113,790$           452,513$         Total Expenditures 2,265,213$   1,132,607$        750,614$             381,992$        1,514,599$   

Activity for the Quarter Annual 

Page 1 of 1

1-4



 

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 
 

 



Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes – October 24, 2022| Page 1 of 3 

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission
Board Meeting Minutes 

October 24, 2022 

Attendance: 

Commissioners present: 
City of Beaverton:  Laura Mitchell 
City of Hillsboro: John Godsey   
City of Sherwood: Not available 
City of Tigard: John Goodhouse 
City of Wilsonville: Kristin Akervall 
Tualatin Valley Water District (TVWD): Not available 

Committee members present:
City of Beaverton: Not available 
City of Hillsboro: Niki Iverson 
City of Sherwood: Craig Sheldon
City of Tigard: Brian Rager  
City of Wilsonville: Delora Kerber 
TVWD: Not available 

Managing Agency staff present:
WIF Commission General Manager /  
Willamette Water Supply Program (WWSP) Director:

Dave Kraska

TVWD General Counsel: Not available 
WWSP Assistant Director: Joelle Bennett
WWSP Permitting and Outreach Manager: Christina Walter 
WWSP Finance Manager: Not available 
TVWD Water Resources Division Manager: Joel Cary 
WIF Commission Recorder /  
WWSP Executive Assistant:

Annette Rehms  

REGULAR SESSION – 6:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Goodhouse called the Willamette Intake Facilities (WIF) Commission meeting to order at 6:08 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Ms. Rehms administered the roll call and noted a quorum was present. 

1. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

Mr. Kraska presented a safety minute on keeping electronic device software updated. (presentation on file) 

The General Manager’s report included a WIF Commission progress review; WIF easement updates; quarterly 
financial reports for the periods ending June 30, 2022, and September 30, 2022; and an update on future hybrid 
meetings.  



Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes – October 24, 2022| Page 2 of 3 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

There were no public comments. 

3. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approve the April 25, 2022 meeting minutes

Motion was made by Godsey and seconded by Mitchell to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The 
motion passed unanimously with Mitchell, Godsey, Goodhouse, and Akervall voting in favor.  

4. BUSINESS AGENDA

A. None

5. INFORMATION ITEMS

A. Watershed Protection, Monitoring, and Outreach Plan

Ms. Walter provided an overview of the project outline for the development of WIF Commission’s Watershed 
Protection, Monitoring, and Outreach Plan.  She reported that the Phase 1 Willamette River Watershed history 
and characterization, watershed data and risk analysis, and stakeholder identification and mapping scope of 
work has been completed.  The Phase 2 scope of work is underway and will include: 

• Partner agency interviews to secure input on high priority issues and preferred outreach
strategies

• Conducting 30-minute virtual interviews with each Commissioner to assess priorities and views
on safe drinking water in their communities, identify/prioritize stakeholder lists

• Hosting five 1-hour workshops to educate and engage stakeholders on opportunities for
cooperating/collaborating with the WIF to protect this critical water source

• Additional local and regional stakeholder outreach

• Performing a comprehensive review of funding opportunities to support the watershed
protection plan efforts

• Identifying monitoring technologies and watershed-based software to help partners develop
early warning systems for key risks identified in Phase 1

Ms. Walter will provide another progress update at the next WIF Board meeting. 

B. Legislative Update

Mr. Cary reported on current legislative activities that are relevant to WIF operations: (presentation on file) 

• 2023 Oregon Legislature’s long session begins in January 2023.

• Oregon Water Data Portal (OWDP) Project – A statewide water data gathering and database
effort to better understand the state’s water resources and inform water infrastructure
decisions.  Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) will lead a multi-agency effort
for initial scoping and design of the portal.



Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
Board Meeting Minutes – October 24, 2022| Page 3 of 3 

• PFAS sampling – The fifth Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule (UCMR 5) is requiring
public water systems serving greater than 10,000 people to collect drinking water samples
between 2023-2025, testing for 29 per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) and lithium.
TVWD, Wilsonville, Hillsboro, and Beaverton tested for PFAS from 2013-2015 in compliance with
UCMR 3.  No detectable levels of PFAS were found.

• Willamette Basin Reallocation – No direct legislation is currently being discussed or developed
related to state level implementation of the Willamette Basin Reallocation, although the effort
continues to be a key project for water providers

o Water agency representatives met with the Oregon Water Resources Department
(OWRD) Willamette Basin Coordinator in September to discuss the draft Situation
Assessment and Workplan for the Willamette River Basin.

o Major milestone was met for municipal and industrial use of stored water: OWRD has
issued a certificate for 437 acre-feet of stored water for municipal and industrial (M&I)
use in Cottage Grove and Dorena Reservoirs as a result of Eugene Water and Electric
Board’s (EWEB) long-term water supply planning efforts. As result of this action, the
Army Corps of Engineers has taken first steps to develop a final stored-water contract
for EWEB.  This process will likely take some time as reviews and approvals make their
way through the Corps’ chain of command.  Once approved this action will serve as the
standard template for future stored-water contracts in the basin.

C. The next Board meeting is scheduled on January 23, 2023, via Microsoft Teams

6. COMMUNICATIONS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS

A. None scheduled.

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further questions or business, Chair Goodhouse adjourned the meeting at 6:36 p.m.



 

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 
 

 



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION



Communications with Those Charged with Governance

Our Responsibility under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States 
of America

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements



Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

Significant Audit Findings and Issues

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Significant Accounting Estimates

Financial Statement Disclosures

Significant Unusual Transactions

Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Disagreements with Management



Management Representations

Management Consultation with Other Independent Accountants

Other Significant Audit Findings or Issues





 

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 
 

 







Page

Board Members 1

Report of Independent Auditors 3

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 1
Statements of Cash Flows 1
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 1

Supplemental Information:

2
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Year Ended June 30, 2022
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Year Ended June 30, 2021 2

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial 
   Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial     
   Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 2

Report of Independent Auditors Required by Oregon State Regulations

WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

CONTENTS





WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

WIF Board Members as of June 30, 2022

John Goodhouse, Chair
Councilor, City of Tigard

Kristin Akervall, Vice Chair
Councilor, City of Wilsonville

Jim Doane, Board Member
Commissioner, Tualatin Valley Water District

Sean Garland, Board Member
Councilor, City of Sherwood

John Godsey, Board Member
Commissioner, City of Hillsboro Utilities Commission

Laura Michell, Board Member
Councilor, City of Beaverton

Commission Address

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission
c/o Tualatin Valley Water District

1850 SW 170th  Avenue
Beaverton, OR 97003
Ph: (503) 848-3000

1





Report of Independent Auditors

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

Basis for Opinions

Government 
Auditing Standards (Government Auditing Standards)

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

3



ies for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Required Supplementary Information

4



Supplementary Information

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

5



6



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

As management of the Willamette Intake Facilities Commission (the Commission), a joint venture of the 
Tualatin Valley Water District (District) and the cities of Beaverton, Hillsboro, Sherwood, Tigard, and 
Wilsonville, we offer readers of the Commission’s financial statements this narrative overview and 
analysis of the Commission’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 (FY2022) and June 
30, 2021 (FY2021). The Commission was formed in April 2018 to own, operate, and maintain the 
Willamette intake facilities.   

These financial statements include this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section to provide 
users of the basic financial statements with an overview and analysis of the statements. 

Financial Highlights 

Net position (assets minus liabilities) was $19.4 million and $16.1 million at June 30, 2022 and
June 30, 2021 respectively. Net investment in capital assets is the largest portion of the
Commission’s net position.

Net position increased by $3.4 million from FY2021 and $9.3 million increase since FY2020.

As of June 30, 2022 the Commission had no outstanding debt.

Capital assets increased by $3.4 million from FY2021 and $9.4 million increase since FY2020.
Capital assets were invested by the parties to the Commission in 2022 and 2021.

Overview of the Financial Statements 

Taken together the sections of the financial statements provide a comprehensive financial look at the 
Commission. The individual components of the report include the following: 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis. This section of the report provides an overview of
financial highlights and economic factors affecting the Commission.

Basic Financial Statements. This section includes the Statements of Net Position, Statements of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Statements of Cash Flows, and Notes to Basic
Financial Statements. The Statements focus on an entity-wide presentation using the accrual basis 
of accounting. They are designed to resemble more closely private-sector financial statements in
that all activities are consolidated into a total for the Commission.

The Statements of Net Position focuses on resources available for future operations. This
statement presents a snap-shot of the assets of the Commission, its liabilities, and the net
difference.
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position focuses on the
current year operating results and the change in capital as a result of the current year
operations.
The Statements of Cash Flows focuses on how the Commission obtained and expended
its available cash and investments.



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statement provides additional disclosures required by
generally accepted accounting principles and provides information to assist the reader in
understanding the Commission’s financial condition.

Statements of Net Position   

The Commission’s assets exceeded liabilities by $19.4 million and $16.1 million at June 30, 2022 and June 
30, 2021, respectively. This represents an increase of 21.0% since June 30, 2021. Net investment in capital 
assets represents the largest portion of the Commission’s net position and had balances of $18.1 million
and $14.7 million at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, respectively. A condensed version of the statements 
of Net Position as of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 is as follows:

Table 1:



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

A condensed version of the Commission’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 is as follows:

Table 2:

The operating expenses for the Commission’s activities totaled $629,313 and $324,542 for the years 
ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 respectively, a 93.9% increase from 2021. Operating expenses 
consist of administrative cost and depreciation on capital assets. The increase is due to 
depreciation expense for assets in operations.  Capital contributions consist of capital assets 
invested by the parties to the Commission. 



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Capital Assets

The Commission has net capital assets of approximately $19.4 million and $16.1 million as of June 30, 
2022 and June 30, 2021 respectively. The Commission is in operation and moved $12.8 million assets from 
construction in progress to depreciable assets in FY2022. These assets comprise the raw water intake, 
equipment, and associated buildings and improvements at the Willamette River Water Treatment Plant.  

Table 3: 

Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Commission has no outstanding debt.

Economic Factors

The Commission was formed in April 2018 to own, operate and maintain the Willamette intake facilities
located at the Willamette River Water Treatment Plant. Tualatin Valley Water District (the District) was 
appointed managing agent. Financial records are maintained by the District. Major goals of the 
Commission are to increase the WIF’s capacity to withdraw water from the Willamette River from 120
million gallons per day (MGD) to 150 MGD and to make substantial seismic upgrades. Improvements to 
the WIF are underway and are anticipated to be completed by 2026. 

Financial Contact

The Commission’s financial statements are designed to present users including taxpayers, citizens, 
customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of the Commission’s finances and overall 
accountability. If you have questions about the contents of this report or need additional financial 
information, please contact Tualatin Valley Water District’s Chief Financial Officer at 1850 SW 170th 
Avenue, Beaverton, Oregon, 97003. 



1



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1



2022 2021
ASSETS

Cash and investments 464,216$            312,892$            
Accounts receivable 941,656              1,019,783           
Prepaid expenses 11,655 10,112 

Total Current Assets 1,417,527           1,342,787           

Capital assets, non-depreciable assets - 9,094,975 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 19,438,648         6,967,613 

Total Noncurrent Assets 19,438,648         16,062,588         

Total Assets 20,856,175         17,405,375         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 953,311              1,029,895           
Retainage payable 464,216              312,892              

Total Liabilities 1,417,527           1,342,787           

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 18,059,578         14,719,801         
Unrestricted 1,379,070           1,342,787           

Total Net Position 19,438,648$      16,062,588$      

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Beaverton, Oregon
WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
1



2022 2021
OPERATING REVENUES

Administrative services 259,774$            155,363$            

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative 259,774              165,022              
Depreciation 369,539              159,520              

Total Operating Expenses 629,313              324,542              

Net Operating Loss (369,539)             (169,179)             

Capital contributions 3,745,599           6,139,919           

Changes in Net Position 3,376,060           5,970,740           

Net Position, beginning of period 16,062,588         10,091,848         

Net Position, end of period 19,438,648$      16,062,588$      

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
1



2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Reimbursements from joint venturers 184,505$            137,471$          
Paid to suppliers for goods and supplies (236,742)             (151,627)           

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (52,237)            (14,156)          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions from joint ventures 3,898,995           5,396,517         
Capital outlay and purchases of capital assets (3,695,434) (5,069,469)       

Net Cash Provided By Capital and Related Financing Activities 203,561              327,048            

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 151,324              312,892            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of year 312,892           - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of year 464,216$            312,892$          

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating loss (369,539)$           (169,179)$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to

net cash from (used by) operating activities:
Depreciation 369,539              159,520            
Change in Operating Accounts:

Accounts receivable (75,269)               (17,892)             
Prepaid expenses (1,543) (487) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 24,575 13,882              

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (52,237)$             (14,156)$           

WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
1



NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization 
Willamette Intake Facilities Commission (the Commission) was organized in April 2018 under Oregon 
Revised Statutes (ORS), Chapter 190 and was established by an agreement between the cities of 
Beaverton, Hillsboro, Sherwood, Tigard, Wilsonville, and the Tualatin Valley Water District (the District). 
The Commission is governed by a six-member board, with one member appointed by each party. The 
purpose of the Commission is to provide for the ownership, management, and operation of the 
Willamette intake facilities (WIF) which are used to withdraw and transmit water to the parties. The 
Commission is managed by the Tualatin Valley Water District. 

Expenses are allocated on a unit basis by the Commission. Each joint venturer’s apportioned share of the 
general administration expenses is determined by the following formula: 25% of the administrative costs 
for the fiscal year is divided evenly among the Commission’s membership; the remainder is divided among 
the Commission membership according to their percentage share of the capacity ownership in the intake 
facilities.  

Operations, maintenance, and repair expenses that result from the use of the facilities are allocated based 
on each party’s proportionate use of the WIF. Depreciation, operations, maintenance, and repair 
expenses unrelated to usage are allocated based on each party’s proportionate capacity ownership of the 
WIF. 

The following capacity ownership percentages were in effect at June 30, 2022: 

City of Beaverton 3.3%
City of Hillsboro 24.1%
City of Sherwood 6.5%
City of Tigard 10.0%
City of Wilsonville 16.7%
Tualatin Valley Water District 39.4%

Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
For financial reporting purposes, the Commission reports its operations on an enterprise fund basis. 
Enterprise funds (a propriety fund type) are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement 
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets, liabilities and net position associated with the operations 
are included on the Statements of Net Position. The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Position present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position. 

1



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The accrual basis of accounting is used for financial reporting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 

Operating revenues result from providing services to the joint venturers. All revenues not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues. Operating expenses are defined as those expenses 
directly related to providing services.  

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of certain assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and other disclosures. Accordingly, 
actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. Total net 
position was not affected by these reclassifications.  

Cash and Investments 
Cash and investments of the Commission are part of a common cash and investment pool maintained 
for all funds managed by the District. The Commission considers these items to be demand deposit 
accounts, where funds may be deposited or withdrawn without prior notice or penalty.  

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable are recorded as earned and no allowance for doubtful accounts is required as all 
receivables are due from the joint venturers. 

Capital Assets
Capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated acquisition 
value at the date of donation. All costs associated with the acquisition or construction of capital assets 
are contributed by the joint venturers. 

The Commission defines capital assets as assets with an initial cost of $7,500 and an estimated useful life 
of more than one year.  

1



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Depreciation on capital assets placed in service is computed on the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives:

Net Position
The Commission’s net position consists of the various net earnings from operating revenues and expenses 
and contributions of capital. Net position is classified in the following two components: net investment in 
capital assets, and unrestricted net position. Net investment in capital assets consists of all capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation, and capital-related accounts payable. Unrestricted net position consists 
of all other net positions not included in other categories.

Budgets
The Commission is an organization formed under ORS, Chapter 190 Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA).  
The IGA that formed the Commission requires the Board to adopt an annual work plan and budget. The 
Commission is accounted for as a fund within the structure of the District, where the budget is prepared 
and legally adopted for the Commission as part of the total budget for the District. The budget is prepared 
on a biennial basis as a separate fund on the modified accrual basis of accounting and complies with 
Oregon Local Budget Law. The level of budgetary control is established at the object classifications
(personnel services, materials and services, capital outlay, and contingency).



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2. CAPITAL ASSETS

The changes in components of capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows: 



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

The changes in components of capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021 were as follows: 

2



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

3. NET POSITION

Changes in net position by joint venturer for the years ending June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 are as 
follows:

2



WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Net investment in capital assets as of June 30, consists of the following:

4. OTHER INFORMATION

Risk Management
The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or damage to and destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, and natural disasters for which the Commission carries commercial 
insurance. The Commission does not engage in risk financing activities where risk is retained (self-
insurance).

Related-party Transactions
The Commission paid $67,246 and $83,026 in management fees for operations and construction in 
process for services provided by the District for years ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, respectively.  
Reimbursements from partners were as follows for the years ended June 30: 

2



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

2



Original Final Actual
REVENUES

Administrative Services 568,163$     568,163$     259,774$     (308,389)$    
Capital Contributions 4,503,973    4,503,973    3,745,599    (758,374)      

Total Revenues 5,072,136    5,072,136    4,005,373    (1,066,763)   

EXPENDITURES

Materials and Services 568,163        568,163        259,774        308,389        

Capital Outlay 4,503,973    4,503,973    3,745,599    758,374        

Total Expenditures 5,072,136    5,072,136    4,005,373    1,066,763    

Excess (deficit) of revenues over
expenditures, and net change
in fund balance - - - - 

Beginning Fund Balance - - - - 

Ending Fund Balance -$  -$  -$  -$  

Reconciliation to Change in Net Position:
Change in Fund Balance -$  

Capital Outlay 3,745,599    
Depreciation (369,539)      

Change in Net Position 3,376,060$  

Variance 
with final 

budget
Budget 

WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION
Beaverton, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2



Original Final Actual
REVENUES

Administrative Services 337,150$     337,150$     155,363$     (181,787)$    
Capital Contributions 7,561,232    7,561,232    6,139,919    (1,421,313)   

Total Revenues 7,898,382    7,898,382    6,295,282    (1,603,100)   

EXPENDITURES

Materials and Services 337,150        337,150        165,022        172,128        

Capital Outlay 7,561,232    7,561,232    6,139,919    1,421,313    

Total Expenditures 7,898,382    7,898,382    6,304,941    1,593,441    

Excess (deficit) of revenues over
expenditures, and net change
in fund balance - - (9,659)           (9,659)           

Beginning Fund Balance - - 9,659            9,659            

Ending Fund Balance -$  -$  -$  -$  

Reconciliation to Change in Net Position:
Change in Fund Balance (9,659)$         

Capital Outlay 6,139,919    
Depreciation (159,520)      

Change in Net Position 5,970,740$  

Budget 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Beaverton, Oregon
WILLAMETTE INTAKE FACILITIES COMMISSION

Variance 
with final 

budget

2



2



Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards

Government Auditing 
Standards

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

2



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

Government Auditing Standards

Purpose of this Report

Government Auditing Standards



Report of Independent Auditors Required by Oregon State 
Regulations

Compliance



Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

Purpose of this Report

3



About the 

•

•
•
•



 

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 
 

 



WIF COMMISSION STAFF REPORT

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: David Kraska, P.E., General Manager 

Date: January 23, 2023 

Subject: Election of Officers for 2023 

Requested Board Action:  
The WIF Commission to elect a Chair and Vice-Chair for the 2023 calendar year. 

Key Concepts: 
Current WIF officers include John Goodhouse, Chair and Kristin Akervall, Vice Chair
The Commission needs to nominate and elect officers for the 2023 calendar year
Last year, the WIF Commission Board agreed to a planned rotation of officer positions

Background:  
The Willamette Intake Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement, effective April 18, 2018, includes: 

“4.6 Officers.  The Board shall annually elect from its Members a Chair and a Vice Chair, who shall be 
officers of the Board.  The elections shall occur at the first meeting of the Board in each calendar year, 
unless otherwise agreed.  The Chair shall serve as the presiding officer.  In the absence of the Chair, the 
Vice Chair shall serve as presiding officer.  Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the Board or until a 
successor is appointed.” 

To simplify the annual process, during the 2022 Board meeting, the WIF Commission Board agreed to a planned 
rotation of officer positions. To date, officer positions have been held by the following: 

Year Chair Vice Chair
2018 John Godsey, Hillsboro Sean Garland, Sherwood
2019 John Godsey, Hillsboro Sean Garland, Sherwood
2020 Jim Doane, TVWD Sean Garland, Sherwood
2021 Sean Garland, Sherwood John Goodhouse, Tigard 
2022 John Goodhouse, Tigard Kristina Akervall, Willsonville 

The planned rotation that was presented and accepted at the January 2022 WIF Commission Board meeting is 
presented in the following table: 

Year Chair Vice Chair
2023 Wilsonville Beaverton
2024 Beaverton Hillsboro 
2025 Hillsboro TVWD
2026 TVWD Sherwood

4A-1



Election of Officers for 2023 
January 23, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 
To implement this election, a Commissioner could move to elect the officers as presented in the planned 
rotation: Wilsonville representative to the Chair position and Beaverton representative to the Vice Chair 
position. Following such a nomination, a vote would be called among the WIF Board members. 

 
Budget Impact:  
None. 
 
Staff Contact Information:  
David Kraska, P.E.; General Manager; 503-941-4561; david.kraska@tvwd.org  
 
Attachments:  
None 
 
 
 

4A-1



WIF COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From:  Justin Carlton, Financial Operations Manager 

Date:  January 23, 2023 

Subject: Fiscal Year 2023-24 Annual Work Plan and Budget Preparation 

Key Concepts: 
Exhibit 8 of the Willamette Intake Facilities (WIF) Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)
establishes the WIF Budget Calendar
TVWD, as the Managing Agency, prepared a draft annual work plan (AWP) and budget for
review by the Operations and Finance committees in accordance with the WIF Budget Calendar
The AWP provides the scope of work to be performed by the Managing Agency for the 2024
fiscal year, in accordance with the WIF IGA
The details of the AWP and budget will be reviewed, modified, and finalized by the WIF
committees prior to presentation to the WIF Board for adoption in April

Background:  
Article 5.6 of the WIF IGA specifies the powers and duties of the Managing Agency, TVWD. TVWD 
prepared a draft version of the AWP to address those Managing Agency duties that are relevant to the 
2024 fiscal year (FY). TVWD also prepared a draft budget for the AWP. The first draft of the AWP and 
budget was shared with the WIF Operations and Finance committees on January 12, 2023.  

The draft FY 24 AWP includes all the same tasks as the current AWP, with the following proposed 
changes, which are under consideration by the WIF Committees: 

1. General Administration
a. Begin development of the Emergency Response Plan
b. Complete the Watershed Protection, Monitoring, and Outreach Plan

2. Capital Projects Management
a. Completion of the WIF related work on the RWF_1.0 project

3. Operations Committee Administration
a. Reduction from nine to six meetings per year

4. Administer WIF Board of Commissioners Meetings
a. Reduction from four to three meetings per year

5. Operations, Maintenance, Repair
a. This is a new category to account for the ongoing operating and maintenance costs of

the WIF facilities

5A-1



Fiscal Year 2024 Annual Work Plan and Budget Preparation
January 23, 2023 
Page 2 of 2

The WIF Operations and Finance committees met on January 18, 2023, to discuss the first draft of the 
AWP and budget. The Managing Agency will prepare an updated version in time to be delivered to the 
Management Committee by March 15, 2023. Depending on the requested changes, additional meetings 
will be held to facilitate providing a final recommended version of the FY 24 AWP and budget for WIF 
Board consideration on April 24, 2023. 
 
Budget Impact:  
The budget for the FY 23 AWP is still under development. A final budget, along with the final AWP, will 
be presented for consideration at the April Board meeting. 
 
 
Staff Contact Information:  
Justin Carlton, Financial Operations Manager; justin.carlton@tvwd.org 
 
Attachments:  
Annual Work Plan and Budget Preparation presentation 
 
 
 
 

5A-1













 

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 
 

 



WIF COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Christina Walter, Permitting and Outreach Manager 

Date: January 23, 2023 

Subject: Watershed Protection, Monitoring, and Outreach Plan Update 

Key Concepts: 
This staff report is an update on Phase 2 development of the Willamette Intake Facilities (WIF) Commission’s 
Watershed Protection, Monitoring, and Outreach Plan. Accomplishments since the progress report submitted to 
the Board at the October 24, 2022 meeting include: 

Completion of a technical memorandum on financial opportunities available for funding support of
watershed protection plan development and implementation
Draft (currently under review) of a technical memorandum which evaluates source water quality
monitoring technology and source water management case studies to assist in development of upstream
protection and early warning systems
Commissioner and Partner interviews in preparation for regional stakeholder outreach in Winter 2023
Preparation for a January 31 WIF Operations Committee workshop on the subject of outreach strategy
and key messaging to stakeholders

Background: 
On November 3, 2021, staff executed a contract with Geosyntec Consultants, Inc. (Geosyntec) to assist the WIF 
Commission Board in its development of a Watershed Protection, Monitoring and Outreach Plan (Plan). Once 
complete and adopted by the WIF Board, the Plan will result in a long-term (25- to 50-year) approach to support 
the WIF Commission’s future work plans and activities in alignment with the Board’s Strategic Framework: Mission 
Vision, Values, and Goals (see Exhibit 1 or use link to WIF Strategic Framework).   

The Geosyntec team concluded Phase 1 of the Plan development with a workshop held on June 6, 2022, with 
representatives of the WIF Operations and Management Committees in attendance. At this workshop Geosyntec 
reviewed the findings of two technical memos: Willamette Watershed History, Characterization and Stakeholders 
and Willamette River Data and Risk Analysis. During the workshop, the group reviewed the history of the 
Willamette River Basin, its changing conditions, public perceptions of the river, and key monitoring studies/reports 
relevant to water quality. Geosyntec also facilitated a stakeholder identification and mapping exercise to prioritize 
stakeholders with which the WIF Commission could approach for potential, future partnerships.  Attached for 
reference is the WIF Local and Regional Stakeholders List (see Exhibit 2). 

The team identified dozens of stakeholders that were categorized by organization and activity types through an 
extensive stakeholder mapping process and prioritized them based on presumed level of influence and interest 
related to watershed protection. Stakeholders were classified as requiring different levels of engagement 
including “Close Engagement,” “Keep Satisfied,” “Keep Informed,” and “Monitor.” Stakeholders that were 
identified as needing close engagement – and thus considered higher priority for this effort—are listed below in 
no particular order:  

5B-1



Watershed Protection, Monitoring and Outreach Plan Update 
January 23, 2023  
Page 2 of 3

• City of Newberg 
• Natural Resource Conservation Service 
• Northwest Environmental Advocates 
• Oregon Department of Environmental Quality  
• Oregon Fish and Wildlife Service 
• Oregon Health Authority 
• Oregon Water Resources Department 
• Trout Unlimited 
• Tualatin Riverkeepers  
• U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
• United States Geological Survey (USGS) 
• WaterWatch Oregon 
• Willamette Partnership  
• Willamette River Water Coalition 
• Willamette Riverkeeper 
• Willamette Water Supply Program 

 

Following the development of these efforts in Phase 1, additional progress was made through the remainder of 
2022.  Accomplishments include: 

 Small group interviews with each partner agency to secure input on high priority issues, stakeholders, and 
preferred outreach and engagement strategies.  
 

 Short one-on-one interviews with each of the WIF Commissioners to assess priorities in assuring safe 
drinking water for their respective communities, identify prioritized stakeholder organizations and 
existing relations, and address concerns the WIF Commissioners may have about the process and/or about 
the project team reaching out to possible stakeholders.  
 

 Development of branding, messaging themes, delivery methods, timing, and measurements of success 
based on audience and desired outcomes.  
 

 Completion of a technical memorandum on the findings of a comprehensive review of current and 
pending funding opportunities to support the implementation of the WIF Commission’s Willamette 
Watershed Protection, Monitoring, and Outreach Plan for source water protection, river water quality 
improvement, communications and outreach initiatives, and other related tasks or strategies. 
 

 Development of a draft technical memorandum which reviews available watershed and water quality 
monitoring technologies, their costs, and partnerships, and specific benefits related to risks identified in 
Phase 1.  This memorandum is currently under review. 

 

Staff is now preparing for a workshop with the WIF Operations Committee which is scheduled for January 31, 
2023. The workshop will be held in-person at the Tualatin Valley Water District main office with an option to 
participate virtually if anyone is unable to travel to the site.  The workshop will focus on reviewing information 
and common themes learned during the Commissioner and Partner interviews, as well as discussing and defining 
the key messaging needed for outreach to stakeholders.  With the feedback gained during this workshop, staff 

5B-1



Watershed Protection, Monitoring and Outreach Plan Update 
January 23, 2023  
Page 3 of 3

will then begin outreach to the stakeholders identified as needing close engagement.  A total of five small 
workshop style meetings to educate and engage the highest priority external stakeholders is planned with the 
goal of identifying opportunities for cooperation in achieving shared goals for the WIF Commission’s Willamette 
Watershed Protection, Monitoring, and Outreach Plan. These workshops are targeted to occur in February 2023. 

Project core working group members are: 

 Joelle Bennett – WWSP, Assistant Program Director 
 Christina Walter – WWSP, Permitting & Outreach Manager 
 Joel Cary – TVWD, Water Resources Division Manager 
 Delora Kerber – City of Wilsonville, Public Works Director 
 Jessica Dorsey – City of Hillsboro, Water Resources Manager 

Budget Impact:  
Informational item. No Board action required. 
 
Staff Contact Information:  
David Kraska, P.E.; General Manager; 503-941-4561; david.kraska@tvwd.org 
Christina Walter, Permitting and Outreach Manager; 503-840-3830; christina.walter@tvwd.org  
 
Attachments: 

 Exhibit 1: WIF Strategic Framework-MVVG
 Exhibit 2: WIF – Local and Regional Stakeholders List 

 
 
    
  
 

5B-1



























 

Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 
 

 











WIF COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Joel Cary, TVWD Water Resources Division Manager 

Date: January 23, 2023 

Subject: Legislative Update 

Key Concepts: 
The 2023 Oregon Legislative Session began January 17.
Agency staff and industry coalitions are beginning to track draft legislative concepts and bills, and the
key Committees associated with water and municipal utility operations.
Notable Items related to water supply planning and management are highlighted below.

2023 Session Overview 
The 2023 Oregon Legislative Session officially began January 17. This is a “long-session” year, which means the 
session will last for approximately six months. Legislative engagement is currently underway, including the 
tracking of draft legislative concepts and bills, and the key Committees associated with water and municipal 
utility operations. Similar to past years, a special focus will be on the Agriculture, Land Use, Natural Resources, 
and Water Committee. This Committee focuses on issues associated with all forms of water usage and state-
wide water strategy and continues to be chaired by Representative Ken Helm with vice chairs Mark Owens and 
Annessa Hartman.  

In-conduit Hydroelectric Power Generation (LC 1056) 
Currently, Oregon Revised Statue requires water rights holders to apply to the Oregon Water Resource 
Department (OWRD) for a certificate to use water for hydroelectric purposes within a water system under an 
applicant’s existing water right. However, some municipal systems do not own their own water right. If a 
municipal water system wants to construct an in-pipe hydroelectric project, it must rely on the water right 
holder to apply directly to OWRD for approval of hydroelectric purposes. This application process requires time 
and resources from the water right holder – which makes it challenging for a municipal water system that does 
not own a water right but wants to do an in-pipe hydroelectric project. A legislative concept (LC) was introduced 
this session by a WIF Commission member – the City of Hillsboro – that would allow a utility, with written 
permission from the water right holder, to apply to OWRD for in-conduit hydroelectric approval, thereby 
streamlining the process for an emerging technology the benefits multiple uses. This LC is currently working its 
way through the Legislature with the support of multiple water coalitions and WIF Commission members.    

Willamette Basin Reallocation 
The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) released their draft Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for the 
Willamette Valley System this November. As a reminder, the “Reallocation” is a subcomponent of the larger 
Willamette Valley System operations under USACE. The Reallocation – which was successfully passed in 2020 by 
Congress – provides the ability to convert stored water behind USACE dams in the Willamette Basin to multiple 
uses, including for the purpose of municipal supply. The current draft EIS is the overarching, system-wide 
assessment which has the potential to alter elements of the Reallocation. The Reallocation project team, which 
includes TVWD and City of Hillsboro staff along with several other water supply agencies in the Willamette  
Basin and subject matter expert consultants, has been reviewing the draft EIS and to-date, have not identified 

5C-1



Legislative Update
January 23, 2022 
Page 2 of 2

anything significant that conflicts with elements of the underlying Reallocation. USACE has acknowledged the 
existing stored water volumes – 159,000 acre-feet in total for municipal supply – and has noted that the initial, 
municipal cap of 11,000 acre-feet will be lifted once instream water rights and flows are met, which is a positive 
advancement. While the review is still underway, project team members are planning to attend some of the 
upcoming public hearing meetings. The deadline for submitting public comments is February 23. Staff and 
various coalition agencies (e.g., Oregon Water Utility Council) will be formalizing a joint public comment 
document to meet the above deadline.  
 
Budget Impact: 
Informational item. No Board action required. 
 
Staff Contact Information: 
David Kraska, P.E.; General Manager; 503-941-4561; david.kraska@tvwd.org 
Joel Cary; TVWD Water Resources Division Manager; 503-848-3019; joel.cary@tvwd.org 
 
Attachments: 
None 

5C-1



Willamette Intake Facilities Commission 
Board Meeting 

January 23, 2023 


	20230123_WIF Board Meeting Agenda
	1-1 GM Report 
	1-2 Safety Minute 
	1-3. WIF- SDIS Coverage_2023
	1-4. WIF Quarterly Report _FY 23 December 2022
	3A-1. 20221024_WIF BOARD Meeting MINUTES
	3B-1. WIF  Final Letter to TCWG FY22
	3B-2. WIF Financial Statements - Final FY 2022
	4A-1. STAFF REPORT - WIF Election of Officers_Janaury 2023
	5A-1. STAFF REPORT - WIF FY23-24 AWP and Budget_January 2023
	5A-2. WIF Commission FY24 AWP budget_01232023
	5B-1. STAFF REPORT_Watershed Protection Monitoring and Outreach Plan 20230123
	5B-2. Exhixit 1 WIF Strategic Framework-MVVG
	5B-3. Exhibit 2 WIF-Local and Regional Stakeholders List
	5C-1. STAFF REPORT_WIF_Legislative_20230123



